











style, as well as the Italianate style tended to
dominate, a few surviving examples of the Gothic
Revival style can be found in New York City
landmark districts, including Greenwich Village,
Gramercy Park, and most notably, Brooklyn Heights.
Significant examples are located at Nos. 131 and 135
Hicks Street, as well as a free-standing house at No.
36 Pierrepont Place, at Hicks Street. As is the case of
the Charlie Parker Residence, evidence of the style
tends to be limited to the entrance and window
surrounds.

Subsequent History
In 1866, Tompkins Square was declared a public

parade ground. The neighborhood’s Irish Catholic
population soon gave way to Germans who dominated
the area well into the twentieth century. Avenue B
became an important north-south thoroughfare, served
by horsecars, and later, cable cars. Furthermore,
beginning in 1853 10th Street offered commuters the
most direct route to the ferry piers serving Greenpoint
in Brooklyn.

After 1880 the house was sold to David Toal who
divided the building into two apartments. William
Arch, a bottle dealer, and his wife Annie, probably
occupied the ground floor, while Sarah Spenade, a
widow, lived in the upper stories with her son and
two daughters, as well as a boarder, the physician
Joseph Vanderbergh. During the late nineteenth
century the northern section of the Lower East Side
was known as Kleindeutschland, Little Germany, and
Dutchtown. Most residents were German immigrants,
and a significant group of philanthropic institutions
located closeby, such as the Children’s Aid Society
Boys Lodging House at No. 127 Avenue B,
Christadora House, a social service facility at No. 147
Avenue B (1928), and the Tompkins Square branch of
the New York Public Library (McKim, Mead &
White, 1904).

In 1906 the house was converted into the Bryson
Day Nursery. Over the next decades, the area’s
population became increasingly diverse, attracting
Italian, Eastern European, Russian, and later, Puerto
Rican residents. In February 1945 the nursery school
was purchased by Joseph Raskob. That spring the
building was divided into three apartments, with a set-
back penthouse on the roof.? During Parker’s
residency, Raskob sold the building to Christadora
House, which owned it from 1952 to 1958.

After Parker moved in 1954, the building had two
other tenants of note: the painter Franz Kline (1910-
1962) and the sculptor Peter Agostini (1913-1993).%
Kline, a celebrated member of the Abstract
Expressionists, occupied the third floor briefly during

1955. While he liked the neighborhood, commenting
that it reminded him of England, he remained for only
three months. Fielding Dawson, who wrote a memoir
of Kline’s life, described the apartment as "a beautiful
top floor place on Avenue B, too small, more for a
writer, and so he moved again."®* From 1962 to
1966, Agostini occupied an upper floor apartment.
During these years his work in cast-plaster and bronze
was exhibited internationally and collected by
American art museums, such as the Museum of
Modern Art, the Metropolitan Museum of Art, and
the Hirshhorn Museum and Sculpture Garden.

Description
The Charlie Parker Residence is located on the

east side of Avenue B, opposite Tompkins Square
Park. Now painted off-white, No. 151 Avenue B is
the block’s only brownstone rowhouse to retain a
stoop. The stoop (painted, with non-historic handrails
at either side) ascends to a deeply-carved, pointed-
arch doorway, consisting of paired colonettes that rise
and intersect over the door. Above the pointed arch is
a prominent horizontal hood molding. To the south,
just below where the hood molding ends, a small
rectangular brass plaque identifies the year the
building was constructed: "1849." The painted double
wood doors, one step up and set inside the arch, are
original. Framed by wood colonettes, each door
consists of five carved trefoil panels. The vertical
panels, at center, have been partially replaced by
glass. In addition, a metal mail slot has been inserted
into the center of the horizontal panel in the north
door. Centered above the doors is the building’s
address, identified with non-historic individual metal
numbers. There is a large, single plate of glass above
the doors, as well as a small non-historic lighting
fixture.

There are two long windows beside the first floor
entry, as well as three smaller ones across the second
and third floors. All are the same width, one-over-
one, and framed by thin hood moldings and sills. All
of the windows are non-historic, except on the first
floor, which are made of wood. Across the top of the
facade a painted box cornice is adorned with
decorative moldings. The cornice’s raised pattern
alternates between rectangles and squares. An inverted
molding extends down from the cornice, as well as a
raised trefoil relief that is painted to match the facade.
On the roof, visible from the street, an iron fence is
installed. The penthouse (or fourth level) is not
visible from the sidewalk across Avenue B.

The ground level, where Parker lived, has two
windows set at grade. Here the facade is slightly
raised, establishing a line below both the first story



and ground level windows. Vertical security gates,
with three cross bars, shield the lower windows.
Between the windows, a small, nearly square, brass
plaque is attached to the facade. It reads: 1950-
1954/THE/CHARLIE PARKER/RESIDENCE/HAS
BEEN PLACED ON THE/NATIONAL REGISTER
OF HISTORIC PLACES/BY THE UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR." The ground
floor apartment is reached by a step and through an
iron gate set beneath the stairs. South of the door is a
stone placque, carved with the address "151." At the
sidewalk the stairs are framed by a pair of non-
historic fences that do not meet and intersect with the
descending handrails on the first step. South of the

stairs, an iron fence extends along the sidewalk to the
edge of the property. Close to the stairs is a gate that
opens and permits access to the ground floor. Parallel
to the fence is a second, taller fence that turns east at
a right angle to meet the facade.

Report Prepared by
Matthew Postal
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NOTES

Since the establishment of New York City Landmarks Commission in 1965 a number of properties have been
designated for their combined architectural and cultural significance. Examples include the Louis Armstrong
House at 34-56 107th Street in Queens, the Langston Hughes House at 20 East 127th Street in Manhattan, and
the Edgar Allen Poe Cottage at 2640 Grand Concourse in the Bronx.

The term bebop is said to have its origins in musical sounds. Others have suggested that it was invented by Fats
Waller. See Ross Russell, Bird Lives! The High Life and Times of Charlie (Yardbird) Parker (New York:

Carl Woideck, Charlie Parker: His Music and Life (Anne Arbor: The University of Michigan Press, 1996), 110.
Barry Kernfeld, "Jazz," The Encyclopedia of New York City (New Haven: Yale University Press, 1995), 615.

Gary Giddins, Celebrating Bird: The Triumph of Charlie Parker (Beech Tree Books, 1987), 109.

Chan Parker, My Life in E-Flar (Columbia, S.C.: University of South Carolina Press, 1993), 31.

- From George Reisner, Bird: The Legend of Charlie Parker (New York: Bonanza Books, 1962), 11.

- Parker returned to the Lower East Side in January 1955, pawning his saxophone at Edelstein Brothers, 233 East

During 1953 Jack Kerouac lived at 501 East 11th Street, about two blocks from Parker. See The Encyclopedia
of New York City, 635. It should also be noted that in May 1997 Allen Ginsberg sent a letter supporting the
designation of the Parker house, see Charlie Parker Residence files, Landmarks Preservation Commission.

2.
Charterhouse, 1973), 136.

3

4.

5. Down Beat, April 22, 1946, cited by Russell, 197.

6.

7. Russell, 302.

3.

9. Ibid., 34.

10

11. Ibid., 109.

12. Pree Parker died March 6, 1954 in St. Vincents’ Hospital, on Seventh Avenue near 12th Street.

13
14th Street. Photograph reproduced in Giddins, last page.

14.

15. Woideck, vii.

16.

Phil Schaap began programming Parker’s music on WKCR in August 1973. According to Schaap,"Birdflight"
is the station’s most listened-to program. Conversation with Schaap, April 1999.



174

18.

19.

20.

21.
22.

23

24.

National Register of Historic Places, Charlie Parker Residence, U.S. Department of the Interior, Heritage,
Conservation and Recreation Services (form prepared by Jeffrey L. Baumoel, 1994).

This date is based on the interpretation of increased property values between 1848 and 1849. See National
Register of Historic Places, Charlie Parker Residence, section 7, 3.

Cottage Residences (1842) went through four editions and The Architecture of Country Houses (1850), nine
printings, equaling more than six thousand copies. See A. J. Downing, The Architecture of Country Houses

(New York: Dover Publications, 1969), introduction by J. Stewart Johnson, vii.
Downing, The Architecture of Country Houses, 262.

Ibid., 274.

NYC, Department of Buildings, Block 392, lot 5, Permit No. AL557-45, dated April 10, 1945. Cited by
Baumoel in National Register of Historic Places report, Charlie Parker Residence, section 7, 3.

For a detailed chronology of Kline’s life, see Harry F. Gaugh, The Vital Gesture: Franz Kline (Cincinnati Art
Museum, 1985), especially p. 179. Information on Agostini was collected by Jeffrey L. Baumoel, a
preservation consultant, who submitted a "Request for Evaluation" to the Landmarks Commission in September
1996. See Research files, New York Landmarks Commission.

Fielding Dawson, An Emotional Memoir of Franz Kline (New York: Pantheon Books, 1967), 27-28.



FINDINGS AND DESIGNATION

On the basis of a careful consideration of the history, architecture and other features of this
building, the Landmarks Preservation Commission finds that the Charlie Parker Residence has a
special character, special historical and aesthetic interest and value as part of the development,
heritage, and cultural characteristics of New York City, New York State, and the nation.

The Commission further finds that, among its important qualities, the Charlie Parker
Residence was occupied by the world-famous alto saxophonist Charlie Parker from 1950 to 1954
at the height of his career; that Parker was the co-founder of the modern jazz style bebop; that he
moved into the ground floor apartment of the three-story rowhouse; that the brownstone-fronted
building (now painted), built circa 1849, is a rare surviving example of a Gothic Revival style
residence; that among its significant features are the pointed-arch entranceway with horizontal hood
molding and the raised trefoil relief below the box cornice; and that as Parker’s home for four
years, the building remains the most significant site in New York City associated with Parker and
the only site in New York City with which he was associated for an extended time.

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 74, Section 3020 of the Charter of the
City of New York and Chapter 3 of Title 25 of the Administrative Code of the City of New York,
the Landmarks Preservation Commission designates as a Landmark the Charlie Parker Residence,
151 Avenue B, Borough of Manhattan, and designates Borough of Manhattan Tax Map 392, Lot
5, as its Landmark Site.
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Charlie Parker
Photograph by Bill Gottlieb, reproduced in Chan Parker, My Life in E-Flat, 1993



Charlie Parker, Chan Richardson and Baird Parker, c. 1953-54
reproduced in Chan Parker, My Life in E-Flat, 1993
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Charlie Parker Residence
151 Avenue B
Photo: Carl Forster
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Charlie Parker Residence, view toward ground floor entry

Carl Forster

Photo
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Charlie Parker Residence, first floor entrance

Photo: Carl Forster



Charlie Parker Residence, box cornice
Photo: Carl Forster
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Avenue B, between East 9th and 10th Streets, Parker Residence at center
Photo: Carl Forster
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Charlie Parker Residence
Landmark Site: Manhattan Tax Map Block 392, Lot 5
Source: New York City Department of Finance, City Surveyor, Tax Map
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Charlie Parker Residence
Source: Sanborn, Manhartan Land Book (1998-1999), detail, plate 27



